

CONSTITUTION OF THE STUDENT BAR ASSOCIATION OF
SOUTHWESTERN UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW

ARTICLE I: NAME

The name of the Association shall be the Southwestern University Student Bar Association, hereafter to be known as the Student Bar Association or SBA.

ARTICLE II: MEMBERSHIP

Section A All persons who are duly registered as students of Southwestern University School of Law are members of the SBA. As members, they shall be entitled to vote, and to exercise the various rights and privileges of membership. All members must be in and remain in good academic standing to hold office in the SBA. Good standing shall be defined as outlined in the Southwestern *Student Handbook*.

Section B All recognized SBA publications, organizations, and legal fraternities shall herein be considered as persons in the manner and extent appropriate to this charter and shall be subject to the Constitution of the SBA, its amendments, By-Laws, and policy.

Section C No member of the SBA shall act in the name of, or represent himself or herself as acting in the name of the SBA with regard to either the University or non-University affairs, unless he or she has due authorization from the Board of Directors or from the SBA President. This section shall not be construed to supersede and other section of this document which gives specific rights and duties to the SBA President and Board of Directors.

ARTICLE III: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section A The powers of the SBA shall be vested in the SBA Board of Directors, hereinafter referred to as the Board.

Section B The Board shall be composed of:

1. The Executive Council

- a. The President of the SBA
- b. The Day Vice President of the SBA
- c. The Evening Vice President of the SBA
- d. The Treasurer of the SBA
- e. The Secretary of the SBA
- f. The American Bar Association, Law Student Division or ABA/LSD Representative.

2. Class Representatives

- a. One from each section, 1st Year Day
- b. One from each section, 2nd Year Day
- c. A total of two, 3rd Year Day
- d. One from each section, 1st Year Evening
- e. One from each section, 2nd Year Evening

- f. One from each section, 3rd Year Evening
- g. One from each section, 4th Year Evening
- h. One from SCALE I
- i. One from SCALE II
- j. Should the President determine the need for additional representation, the President shall declare, subject to Board approval, an open position, and an election for that position will be held in conjunction with the First Year elections.

3. Commissioners

- a. A Commissioner on Academic Affairs
- b. A Commissioner on Alumni Affairs
- c. A Commissioner on Community Affairs
- d. A Commissioner on Minority Affairs
- e. A Commissioner on Student Activities
- f. A Commissioner on Student Welfare
- g. Any Commissioner approved by the Board
- h. Should the President determine the need for additional commissioners, the President shall, subject to Board approval, appoint co-commissioners to any position.

4. All Board members must be members of the American Bar Association

Section C VOTING RIGHTS

1. A quorum shall be a simple majority of the total number of voting members of the Boars, simple majority meaning fifty (50) percent plus one of all votes cast.
2. A member of the Boars may not continue to represent his/her constituency on the Board once he/she ceases to be a member of that constituency.
3. The Class Representatives shall have one vote on the Board.
4. The President of the SBA shall have no vote except where his/her vote may be decisive.
5. All other members of the Executive Council shall each have one vote. The Executive Council has the authority to take votes and make decisions without the rest of the Board when required by time constraints.
6. The ABA/LSD representative shall have one vote on the Board.
7. The Commissioners shall be non-voting members of the Board.

Section D RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

1. Shall have the general policy control and management of the SBA and its activities.
2. May establish committees with such responsibilities and duties as the Board shall determine.

3. To enact any regulation necessary to comply with and execute efficiently the standards and programs of the University concerning the conduct, activities, and all other matters dealing with the relations of the SBA.
4. To initiate and regulate activities.
5. To propose and approve the SBA budget and significant expenditures.
6. To approve or reject by a majority vote (a quorum being present), all appointments by the SBA President.
7. To override a presidential veto by two-thirds (2/3) vote (a quorum being present) of the Board.
8. To deliberate upon and approve any constitution for all recognized student organizations; such constitution shall be consistent with the Constitution, By-Laws, and policies of the SBA.
9. To provide for the installation of the incoming Board by means of a school-wide election.
10. Shall meet a minimum of one time per month on call of the President, or upon petition of one-third (1/3) of the voting members of the Board.
11. Shall approve creation and deletion of commissions by two-thirds (2/3) vote (a quorum being present).

ARTICLE IV: OFFICERS

Section A RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT

1. To act as the official representative of the SBA in all matters pertaining to the SBA.
2. To act as Chairperson of the Board.
3. The President may appoint Commissioners, subject to the approval of the incoming Board. Those appointments shall not take effect until the President's term of office begins,
4. To serve as a non-voting member, with voice on all committees, boards, and commissions of the SBA.
5. To approve or veto bills passed by the Board.
6. To act as Chair of the Budget Committee.
7. To act as a student member of the Faculty hiring committee.
8. To attend all American Bar Association annual meetings as a representative of the Southwestern Student Bar Association.

Section B RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE DAY VICE PRESIDENT

1. To serve as official representative of all matters dealing with Day Students' affairs.

2. To act as President in the absence of the President.

Section C RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE EVENING VICE PRESIDENT

1. To serve as official representative of all matters dealing with Evening Student affairs.
2. To act as President in the absence of the President and Day Vice President.

Section D RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE TREASURER

1. To be responsible for the collection, disbursement, and accounting of all SBA funds.
2. To serve as a member of the Budget Committee.
3. To make to the Board such written financial reports as may be required, provided that one such report be published at the end of each academic term.
4. To make no disbursement of money except by written authorization as provided in the budget or by special appropriation of the Board.
5. To handle all requests for travel by student organizations and present requests to the executive board in weekly meetings for voting/approval.
6. All requests for funds shall be signed by the Treasurer only.

Section E RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY

1. To keep and maintain permanent comprehensive records of the SBA, including the Charter, Constitutions, By-laws, and contact information of all recognized organizations.
2. To record minutes at each Board meeting. To prepare minutes for presentation and approval at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.
3. To be responsible to the President for all communications necessary for promotion and execution of SBA Board functions.
4. To handle all organizations and commissions room request forms and registration.
5. To serve as Chairperson of the Election committee.
6. To compile a weekly school-wide newsletter or email including all meetings of all SBA organizations for distribution to all students.

Section F RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE CLASS REPRESENTATIVE

1. To attend each meeting of the Board to represent the interests of their class or section.

2. To report to the members of their class or section the events and actions of the SBA, and all other student organizations and commissions.
3. To recruit and recommend members of their class or section to participate on SBA commissions and committees.

Section G RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE PARLIAMENTARIAN

1. To attend all meetings of the SBA, general, executive council, and Board, and the Parliamentarians committee.
2. Shall retain official copies of the Constitution, By-Laws, and Amendments.
3. Shall make interpretations and rulings on the Constitution, By-Laws, and Amendments, and the conduct of meetings, in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order.
4. Shall govern Referendum and Special Elections.
5. Shall amend SBA Constitution with approval of the Board.

Section H RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION.LAW
STUDENT DIVISION REPRESENTATIVE

1. Shall actively participate in the goals and aims of the American Bar Association Law Student Division
2. Shall attend all American Bar Association Law Student Division meetings with the SBA President as a representative of the Southwestern Student Bar Association.

ARTICLE V: COMMISSIONERS

Section A COMMISSIONS

1. Each Commissioner listed in Article I, Section B(3), shall be appointed no later than the 2nd week of the particular term.
2. Each Commissioner shall establish a commission composed of members of the SBA, which will be responsible for carrying out duties and responsibilities of that Commission.
3. Each Commissioner shall determine the number of members of his or her commission necessary to achieve goals.
4. Each Commissioner shall report to the Board upon the SBA Board's request.
5. Each Commissioner shall attend all required meetings of the SBA Board.

Section B RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF COMMISSION ON ACADEMIC AFFAIRS

1. To act as official liaison between the SBA and Dean for Academic Affairs.
2. To be responsible for the formation of a commission to deal with proposals and problems relating to academic policies, including, but not limited to, grading policy and curriculum.

Section C RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE COMMISSIONER ON STUDENT WELFARE

1. To be responsible for organizing and promoting any activities and programs which will add to the betterment of the conditions of student welfare, which shall be interpreted to encompass students' physical and mental well-being, and general student morale.
2. To be responsible for the formation of a commission to deal with problems concerning student welfare, as indicated in sub-paragraph (1) above.
3. To create and maintain the student mentor program.

Section D RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE COMMISSION ON MINORITY AFFAIRS

1. To act as a liaison between the SBA and all organized minority groups at the University.
2. To be responsible for organizing and promoting any activities and programs which will contribute to the effectuation of equality of all minority groups at the University.
3. To be responsible for the formation of a commission which will deal specifically with the matters indicated in sub-paragraphs (1) and (2) above.
4. To plan and execute the Cultural Food Fair.

Section E RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE COMMISSIONER ON STUDENT ACTIVITIES

1. To administer and organize all activities sponsored by the SBA in which all members of the University may participate.
2. To maintain contact with the Presidents of all school organizations, including scheduled meetings with these Presidents at least twice a semester, to facilitate communications.
3. To be responsible for the formation of a Commission which will deal specifically with the matters indicated in sub-paragraphs (1) and (2) above, as well as with the publication of the calendar of the SBA.

Section F RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF THE COMMISSIONER ON COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

1. To act as liaison between SBA and all organized community service programs that are being sponsored by members of the University.

2. To organize and administer new programs which provide any type of beneficial service to the local community.
3. To encourage and promote student involvement in any type of community service program, by forming a commission to deal specifically with the matters indicated in this section.
4. To publicize within the University, programs with which members of the University may wish to be involved.
5. To promote, in conjunction with the University Public Information Officer, extra-University publicity dealing with SBA and community service affairs and programs.

ARTICLE VI: ELECTIONS

Section A There will be three (3) scheduled elections during the school year, as follows:

1. The first, to be held within thirty (30) days after SCALE I classes begin, to elect the SCALE I Class Representative.
2. The second, to be held within thirty (30) days after the regular Fall school session begins, to elect first year Class Representatives.
3. The third election to be held in a period sixty (60) to seventy-five (75) days after the first day of classes of the Spring semester to elect the SBA Executive Council and Class Representatives for the following school year.

Section B All elections other than those specified in Article VI, Section A, must be approved by a majority vote of the board.

Section C VOTING PRIVILEGES

1. All members of the SBA shall be entitled to one vote at a general student body election, subject to verification by appropriate identification.
2. Only day students may vote for the Day Vice President. Only evening students may vote for the Evening Vice President. Students may only vote for SBA Representatives in their respective class or section.
3. In all cases the ballot shall be secret. The ballots shall be individually numbered to prevent the possibility of voter fraud.
4. A separate ballot shall be printed to reflect each of the separate constituencies reflected in sub-paragraph (2) above.
5. Only members of the SBA Executive Board may work at the election tables.

Section D CANDIDACY

1. No candidate for the SBA Executive Council shall be on academic or disciplinary probation at the time of the election or throughout the terms of office as defined by the Southwestern Student Handbook.
2. No candidate shall run for more than one SBA office per election.
3. In the event an office is not filled in the annual election, the incoming President will appoint the position, subject to the incoming Board's approval.

Section E Election to the SBA Executive Council requires a plurality of all votes cast in an Article VI election, even if a candidate runs uncontested.

Section F ELECTION FOR SBA CLASS REPRESENTATIVES

1. In the spring election, the two candidates who receive the highest number of votes shall be elected. In the event of a tie for the second position, a runoff election will be held between the people who received the two highest number of votes.
2. In the event that the SBA President creates additional Class Representative positions, those elections will be held in conjunction with the Fall term elections and with the same requirements for winning as in sub-paragraph (1) above.

Section G All elections will be conducted subject to the SBA Constitution and its Amendments and By-Laws.

Section H All candidates, before announcing their candidacy, must:

1. Attend a mandatory pre-election meeting which will inform the candidates of responsibilities and duties of each elected or appointed position. If candidates do not attend the mandatory meeting, they are precluded from participating in election as a candidate or appointee.
2. Obtain, read, and understand the Constitution and its By-Laws prior to participation in elections.
3. Be determined academically eligible by the Dean of Student Affairs.
4. Turn in all required paperwork by the date determined by the election committee.

ARTICLE VII: TERMS OF OFFICE

Section A DURATION OF TERM

1. The term of members of the Executive Council shall begin on the last day of classes of the Spring Semester in which they are elected and end on the last day of classes of the following Spring Semester.
2. All newly elected members of the Board shall serve as officers- and representatives-elect from the date of their election to the last day of classes of the Spring Semester in which they were elected.
3. All SCALE I, first year day, and first year evening class representatives and any additional second and third year day representatives and third and fourth year evening representatives as per Article III, Section B, sub-paragraphs (2)(j), shall take office immediately upon verification of their election pursuant to Article VI, Section A (1 and 2).
4. No individual may hold more than one elected or appointed office.

Section B REMOVAL FROM OFFICE

1. A two-thirds (2/3) majority of the voting members present (a quorum also being present) of the Board, voting by secret ballot, may remove any officer of the SBA, elected or appointed. In the event removal proceedings are initiated against the President, the Parliamentarian shall preside over the proceedings. All removal proceedings shall be handled jointly by the President and Parliamentarian.
2. Removal proceedings may be brought for neglect of duty, misconduct, malfeasance of the office, or conflict of interest.
 - a. Removal proceedings may not be brought for any other reason than those stated above except for removal for non-attendance as specified in Article IV of the By-Laws.
 - b. In order for removal proceedings to be instituted it shall be necessary for at least two voting members of the board to submit written charges, Such charges shall be accompanied by written evidence as available.
 - c. Upon submission of the charges to the Board, the Board will determine by a majority vote of those present and voting (a quorum being present) whether the charges warrant a removal hearing.
 - d. The subject of the removal proceedings shall be notified of the charges by certified mail (return receipt requested) at least fifteen (15) school days prior to the time instituted for the hearing. Such notification shall include a copy of the charges and evidence and the hearing date.
 - e. The subject of the removal proceedings may request a rescheduling of the hearing date, and every effort shall be made to accommodate that request provided that the new date is within ten (10) days of the originally scheduled hearing.
 - f. All hearings shall be closed to anyone except Board members and any witnesses that are called unless the subject of the hearing requests that the meeting be open.
 - g. Those bringing the charges may call witnesses to substantiate the charges if they so desire.
 - h. The subject of the removal hearing shall have every opportunity to respond to the charges, and may call witnesses to assist in this response.

Section C VACANCIES

1. In the event that a vacancy occurs in an SBA elected office except the Presidency, such vacancy will be filled within ten (10) working days by appointment by the SBA President, and approval of the Board by two-thirds (2/3) of the members.
2. In the event of a vacancy in an appointed position, such vacancy will be filled within ten (10) working days by appointment by the SBA President, with a simple majority approval of the Board, (a quorum also being present).
3. In the event that a vacancy occurs in the Presidency, the order of succession shall be: Day Vice-President, Evening Vice-President, Treasurer, Secretary. In the event that none of the above are available to assume the office of President, the Board shall, by two-thirds (2/3) vote, select a President from the existing Board to serve the unexpired term.

ARTICLE VIII: INITIATIVE AND REFERENDUM

Section A Upon written petition of five (5) percent of the members of the SBA, any member of the SBA may initiate legislation, including By-Laws, by means of a referendum election.

Section B Any official act of the Board may be subject to a referendum election upon written petition of five (5) percent of the members of the SBA within thirty (30) calendar days of the passage of the act.

Section C Upon verification of the signatures, a Referendum Election will be called.

Section D A majority of all votes cast in a General Election shall be sufficient to pass such legislation.

Section E Any initiative act passed may be repealed or amended by subsequent initiatives.

Section F Initiative measures approved by popular vote may not be amended in whole or in part by the Board in office at the time the measures are so approved.

Section G An initiative act is not subject to the veto of the SBA President.

ARTICLE IX: AMENDMENT

Section A The Board, whenever two-thirds (2/3) of the Board's voting members shall deem it necessary, or upon petition of ten (10) percent of the members of the SBA, shall propose amendments to this Constitution.

Section B Amendments shall be valid upon ratification by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of votes cast in a special election held within thirty (30) calendar days subsequent to the date of the proposals.

Section C All Amendment proceedings shall be under the direction of the Parliamentarian of the SBA Board.

ARTICLE X: BY-LAWS

Section A By-Laws may be adopted and amended to further the intent and purposes of this constitution.

Section B Adoption and amendment of By-Laws shall be by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the voting membership of the Board.

Section C All By-Law proceedings shall be under the direction of the Parliamentarian of the SBA Board.

ARTICLE XI: INTERPRETATION

Section A This Constitution shall be interpreted by the Parliamentarian's Committee, in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order.

Section B This Committee shall consist of:

- 1) The SBA Parliamentarian,
- 2) The Dean of Student Affairs,
- 3) The Faculty Advisor to the SBA,
- 4) The SBA President,
- 5) The SBA Secretary.

ARTICLE XII: ENABLING

Section A This document shall become effective as the Constitution of the SBA of Southwestern University School of Law, on the concluding date of the 2005 general SBA elections, after having received the approval of ratification by majority of the votes cast by the members of the SBA.

ARTICLE XIII: REVOCATION CLAUSE

Section A All previous Constitutions of the SBA of Southwestern University School of Law are hereby revoked.

BY-LAWS TO THE SBA CONSTITUTION

ARTICLE I: CAMPUS ORGANIZATIONS, CLUBS, AND LEGAL FRATERNITIES

1. All campus organizations, clubs, and legal fraternities shall be initially recognized upon submission of a charter, constitution, or bylaws which sets out in detail the goals, purposes, and functions of the organization, including rules for election of officers and terms of office, and criteria for membership, (which does not include any discriminatory policies) and any other rules and procedures, and a list of board members and contact information.
 - a. Recognition will be upon a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the board (a quorum being present).
2. All recognized SBA organizations, clubs, and legal fraternities will be eligible to receive SBA funds if they meet the following criteria:
 - a. Submission of a list of all current officers and contact information no later than the fourth (4th) week of the fall semester. An updated list shall be submitted no later than the fourth (4th) week of the spring semester if there are any changes.
 - b. Attendance meets criteria per Article IV of the By-Laws.
3. All campus organizations, clubs, and legal fraternities, which are chartered, recognized, and funded by the SBA expressly agree to abide by the SBA Constitution, its Amendments, and By-Laws, the Southwestern University Honor Code, and all SBA procedures and policies.
4. Failure by any campus organization, club, or legal fraternity to abide by the provisions of the SBA Constitution, its Amendments and By-Laws or the policies of the SBA Board, will be reviewed by the SBA Board and subject that organization to revocation of charter, suspension of all funding, and suspension of all rights, benefits, and privileges.
 - a. In order for such proceedings to be instituted it shall be necessary for at least three (3) members of the SBA to submit written charges. Such charges shall be accompanied by written evidence as available or documentation from witnesses to the alleged infraction.
 - b. Upon submission of the charges to the board, the board will determine by a majority vote of those present and voting (a quorum being present) as to whether the charges warrant a hearing to consider whether disciplinary action is warranted.
 - c. Disciplinary action could take the form of a reprimand, probation, or revocation of charter.
 - d. The organization subject to the disciplinary hearing shall be notified of the charges by certified mail (return receipt requested) at least fifteen (15) school days prior to the time instituted for the hearing. Such notification shall include a copy of the charges and evidence and the hearing date.

- e. The organization may request a rescheduling of the hearing date, and every effort shall be made to accommodate that request provided that the new date is within ten (10) days of the originally scheduled hearing.
 - f. All hearings shall be closed to anyone except board members and any witnesses that are called unless the organization requests that the meeting be open.
 - g. Those bringing the charges may call witnesses to substantiate the charges if they so desire.
 - h. The accused organization shall have every opportunity to respond to the charges, and may call witnesses to assist in this response.
 - i. Following a hearing, the SBA Board shall determine whether any further action is appropriate. A reprimand, probation, or revocation of the charter shall require a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the voting members present (a quorum being present).
 - j. Should the organization receive a probation, that probation shall last for one year from the date of the hearing. Any further infraction that is proven subject to the due process procedures above will cause automatic revocation of the organization's charter. At the end of the probationary period (no further charges have been proven) the organization shall receive written notification that the probation has been successfully completed.
 - k. Any organization which has its charter revoked may not apply for reinstatement for two (2) years. Such application shall follow the procedures for any new organization applying for recognized status.
5. Membership in any campus organization, club, or legal fraternity will be open to all SBA members in good standing, in accordance with the Honor Code in the Southwestern *Student Handbook*.
6. Each SBA chartered and recognized organization shall be required to appoint one representative and an alternate who shall be responsible for acting as liaison between the SBA and their organization. This person's duties shall include, but are not limited to, attendance at all SBA General Business Meetings, or other times, when attendance is required. This person will coordinate their organization's activities with the SBA.
- a. When coordinating their organization's activities, the representative will not purposely schedule any event that will conflict with another organization's scheduled event or any school-wide event.

ARTICLE II: ELECTIONS

1. Elections will be supervised by the SBA Election Committee. This Committee will be chaired by the SBA President unless he or she is a candidate for officer or is unable or unwilling to serve. In the event that the President is unable to serve in his or her capacity, a member of the board who is in the graduating class shall be appointed by the President to serve as the election chair.

2. The SBA Election committee shall be chaired by the SBA President and shall also consist of the SBA Secretary and Parliamentarian.
3. A “plurality” shall mean the highest percentage of all votes cast.
4. When no candidate for an SBA office receives a plurality of all votes cast, a run-off election shall be held between those candidates receiving the same number of votes.
5. Except for the rules and procedures outlined in the SBA Constitution and By-Laws, all rules, regulations, and procedures regarding elections will be determined and enforced by the SBA Election Committee. Infractions violations may be referred to the SFRC. Rules for the election shall be published and given to candidates by the close of the time designated for filing for office. Each candidate shall sign a declaration indicating that he or she has received, read, and understood the rules as published.

ARTICLE III: SBA BUDGET

1. An SBA Budget Committee, chaired by the SBA President-Elect will be formed within two (2) weeks, or as soon thereafter as is feasible, of the election of the SBA Board for the coming school year. The SBA Budget Committee may be the SBA Executive Board.
2. The SBA Fiscal year will begin on July 1st and end on June 30th of the following year, which coincides with the fiscal year adopted by Southwestern University.
3. All budget requests shall be submitted according to University policy and the policies as adopted by each SBA Board upon recommendation of the SBA Budget Committee.
4. The Budget Committee shall review all budget requests and make recommendations to the Board.
5. The necessity for an “emergency expenditure” will be determined by the SBA President and SBA Treasurer and reported by the SBA Treasurer at the next general SBA business meeting.

ARTICLE IV: ATTENDANCE

1. All Board members (Officers, Class Representatives, and Commissioners) will be required to attend all general business meetings and Board meetings.

2. If a voting Board member is unable to attend for good cause, a written notice should be submitted prior to the meeting or as soon thereafter as is possible. All written excuses and absences will be considered by the Executive Council. Unacceptable absences will be submitted to the Board for further action.
3. Absences from two (2) consecutive meetings without good cause shall result in forfeiture of a person's position.
4. Should any SBA chartered and recognized organization fail to have a representative in attendance at two (2) consecutive general business meetings, that organization will be subject to forfeiture of its funding for that year.

ARTICLE V: MISCELLANEOUS

1. All meetings of the SBA shall be conducted according to Robert's Rules of Order (the latest edition).
2. A copy of the Constitution and By-Laws shall be distributed to all representatives and organization at the beginning of the school year.
3. The SBA of Southwestern University shall be a member of the American Bar Association (ABA).
4. The SBA of Southwestern University shall apply for and maintain membership in national, state, and local organizations, as is deemed necessary by the SBA Board or SBA President.
5. The SBA President shall act as the representative of the SBA to all organizations of which the SBA is a member.

ARTICLE VI: ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER

1. All matters not expressly dealt within these Constitution and By-Laws shall be governed by the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order newly revised.